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U.S. Department 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
of Transportation Washington, DC 20590
Pipeline and Hazardous

Materials Safety

Administration

October 8, 2021

Mr. Timothy W. Wiseman

Partner

Scopelitis, Garvin, Light, Hanson & Feary, P.C.
10 West Market Street

Suite 1400

Indianapolis, IN 46204

Reference No. 21-0094
Dear Mr. Wiseman:

This letter is in response to your September 20, 2021, letter requesting clarification of the
Hazardous Materials Regulations (HMR; 49 CFR Parts 171-180) applicable to handling of
sharps containers. Specifically, you provide the following information about a lidded tray carrier
intended for use in handling of sharps containers that otherwise meet the requirements of the
HMR and ask whether it may be used for transportation of sharps containers:

e Your client packages sharps into sharps containers that meet § 173.134(c);

e Up to two 8-gallon, six 2-gallon, or six 3-gallon sharps containers are placed into a lidded
tray carrier;

e While in the lidded tray carrier, each individual sharps container remains fully closed and
lidded;

e The lidded tray carrier is used to “prevent the individual sharps containers from falling
over and/or spilling in transit;” and

e The lidded tray carrier does not obscure any markings on the individual sharps
containers.

The answer is yes, subject to conditional requirements. As defined in § 171.8, an overpack
“means an enclosure that is used by a single consignor to provide protection or convenience in
handling of a package or to consolidate two or more packages.”



Therefore, when the lidded tray carrier meets the definition of an overpack and the overpack
requirements of § 173.25—including package mark and label visibility (see § 173.25(a)(2))—the
lidded tray carrier may be used for transportation of the sharps containers.

I hope this information is helpful. Please contact us if we can be of further assistance.
Sincerely,

Y i

Dirk Der Kinderen
Chief, Standards Development Branch
Standards and Rulemaking Division



Geller

From: Kelley, Shane (PHMSA) 21-0094
To: INFOCNTR (PHMSA)

Cc: Dodd, Alice (PHMSA)

Subject: FW: Request for Interpretation

Date: Monday, September 20, 2021 4:14:27 PM

Attachments: Request - Interpretation 9-20-21.pdf

Please log as a request for interpretation. Thank you!

From: Chimento, Kim <kchimento@scopelitis.com>
Sent: Monday, September 20, 2021 3:14 PM

To: Kelley, Shane (PHMSA) <shane.kelley@dot.gov>
Cc: alina.fortson@stericycle.com

Subject: Request for Interpretation

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Department of Transportation (DOT). Do not click on links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

*This e-mail is sent on behalf of Timothy W. Wiseman - twiseman@scopelitis.com:

Mr. Kelly:

| have enclosed a Request for Interpretation on behalf of my client, Stericyle, Inc. Please
contact me with any questions you may have.

Timothy W. Wiseman, Partner

Scopelitis, Garvin, Light, Hanson & Feary, P.C.
10 West Market Street, Suite 1400, Indianapolis, IN 46204

twiseman@scopelitis.com | T: 317.637.1777 | D: 317.492.9221

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message is privileged and confidential for the addressee(s) named above. If you are not the intended
recipient, you are prohibited from disseminating, using, or copying the contents and should notify the sender immediately that you
received this message in error. The signature(s) within this email does not constitute any binding agreement.
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TIMOTHY W. WISEMAN
twiseman@scopelitis.com

September 20, 2021

Shane Kelly

Chief, Regulatory Review & Reinvention Branch
Standards and Rulemaking Division

U.S. Department of Transportation

Pipeline & Hazardous Material Safety Adm.
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE

Washington, DC 20590

Re: Request for Interpretation
Dear Mr. Kelly:

In follow-up to my telephone call with Michael Nicks and Andrew Eckenrode of the
U.S. Department of Transportation, Pipeline & Hazardous Material Safety
Administration (“PHMSA”) on August 11, 2021, I write to request confirmation that
the lidded tray carrier assembly intended for future use in the motor vehicle
transportation of sharps containers (e.g. regulated medical waste) would not require
a special permit, approval or other type of registration with the agency. Attached as
Exhibit A is a photograph and description of the lidded tray carrier intended for use
in this regard. The lidded tray carrier can accommodate two 8-gallon containers, six
2-gallon containers, or six 3-gallon containers.

In this case, my client, Stericycle, Inc., transports used sharps for its various
healthcare customers under the limited exception set forth in 49 C.F.R. § 173.137(c).
The lidded tray carrier has been designed by Stericycle in order to prevent the
individual sharps containers from falling over and/or spilling in transit. As noted in
Exhibit A, each individual sharps container remains fully closed and lidded while in
the lidded tray carrier to prevent any contents from escaping the sharps container in
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Shane Kelly
September 20, 2021
Page 2

transport. Moreover, the lidded tray carrier does not obscure any of the markings
contained on the individual sharps containers.

In discussing this matter with Mr. Nicks and Mr. Eckenrode last month, they were
of the opinion that the lidded tray carriers would be considered an “overpack” under
49 C.F.R. § 171.8. They further indicated that there is no regulatory restriction or
prohibition against the use of such an overpack in the transportation of regulated
medical waste. As such, they advised Stericycle that no special permit, approval or
other type of registration would be needed from the DOT with respect to the
immediate use of the lidded tray carriers. The purpose of this request for
Interpretation 1s to simply seek written confirmation of the representations
previously by Mr. Nicks and Mr. Eckenrode before Stericycle begins use of the
containers.

If you have any questions or need anything further to process this request, please do
not hesitate to contact me.

Very truly yours,

/s/ Timothy W. Wiseman

Timothy W. Wiseman
TWW/kke

Enclosure
cc: Alina Fortson

ESCOPELITIS

GARVIN LIGHT HANSON & FEARY





Section 7: Photographs and descriptions

Lidded Tray Carrier Assembly

1. Open the lids of the Lidded Tray Carrier
2. Insert each sharps containers one at a time into the custom designed die cut hole
a. Each sharps container remains lidded while in the Lidded Tray Carrier to prevent
anything escaping the sharps container
3. Grasp the Lidded Tray Carrier lids and pull up the Lidded Tray Carrier
4. Close and secure each Lidded Tray Carrier Lid one at a time

Below is a photo of the custom designed die cut holes referenced above






Each lid of the Lidded Tray Carrier has a lip to prevent any movement of all size sharps containers
stacked on top.

Similar types of packaging to help illustrate functionality
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